#### STANDARDS COMMITTEE

Minutes of a meeting of the Standards Committee held in Conference Room 3, County Hall, Ruthin on Friday, 20<sup>th</sup> October, 2006 at 10.00 a.m.

#### **PRESENT**

Mr C.B. Halliday (Chair), Councillors R.E. Barton (Observer), P.A. Dobb and R.Ll. Williams, Mr I. Lawson, Mr G.F. Roberts and Mrs P. White.

# **ALSO PRESENT**

The Monitoring Officer and Administrative officer (C.I. Williams).

#### **APOLOGIES**

Councillor P. Glynn

#### 531 URGENT MATTERS

No items were raised which in the opinion of the Chair, should be considered at the meeting as a matter of urgency pursuant to Section 100B(4) of the Local Government Act, 1972.

#### 532 MINUTES

The Minutes of the Standards Committee held on Friday, 14<sup>th</sup> July, 2006 were submitted.

Matters arising:-

3. Attendance at Meetings. (a) County Council – Reference was made to Paragraph 18. of Denbighshire County Council Standing Orders, Members' Conduct 18.1 – Standing to Speak. It was explained that, under certain circumstances, dispensations had been granted to respective Members to allow them to remain seated when addressing the meeting.

In response to concerns expressed with regard to the quality of the sound system installed in the Council Chamber, the Monitoring Officer explained that the problem could be examined further at a future date following the utilisation and improvement of the video camera system, he felt that this system would assist in providing clarity of proceedings for both Members of the Council and members of the public attending meetings.

(b) Henllan Community Council - Councillor R.LI. Williams referred to the differing procedures, practises and protocol adopted by Community Councils at their meetings, particular reference being made to the consideration of matters pertaining to planning applications. The Chair reminded Members that the Monitoring Officer had written to Town and Community Councils offering assistance and training on matters relating to the importance of the need to ensure compliance with the Code of Conduct.

During the ensuing discussion, it was agreed that the Monitoring Officer further examine the need for the provision of assistance and training for Town and Community Councils with regard to the Members Code of Conduct.

**RESOLVED** – that, subject to the above, the Minutes be received and approved as a correct record.

## 533 ATTENDANCE AT MEETINGS

#### (a) County Council

The Chair informed Members that he had recently attended a meeting of the County Council but, as previously agreed, had not submitted a report to the Committee as he had no views or comments to make in respect of the proceedings.

### **RESOLVED** that the position be noted.

### (b) Lifelong Learning Scrutiny Committee

The Vice Chair, Mr G.F. Roberts, explained that he had attended two meetings of the Lifelong Learning Scrutiny Committee. He informed Members that he had not submitted a report as no issues had arisen which fell within the jurisdiction or remit of the Standards Committee.

**RESOLVED** that the position be noted.

#### 534 MONITORING THE CODE OF CONDUCT

#### (a) To note the increase in size of the Standards Committee

The Chair welcomed Councillor R.LI. Williams and Mrs P.M. White to the meeting following their recent appointment to the Standards Committee. The Monitoring Officer confirmed that Mrs White had signed the required form accepting adherence to the Code of Conduct, and explained that Councillor R.LI. Williams had already signed the respective form as a Member of the County Council.

**RESOLVED** that the position be noted.

#### (b) Revised Code of Conduct

A copy of a letter from Stephen Phipps, Head of Partnership and Ethics Team, Local Government Policy Division, Welsh Assembly Government to Ceredigion County Council, submitting an apology for being unable to attend the Standards Committee Conference on the 22<sup>nd</sup> September, 2006, had been circulated with the papers for the meeting.

The letter provided a brief update on the current position with regard to the review of the Code of Conduct explaining that there had been a very good response to the consultation exercise. However, other Internal Assembly pressures and priorities had meant that a detailed analysis of the responses had not been completed, though initial scrutiny had suggested that there had been widespread support for the board thrust of proposals put forward by the review group and a flavour of the mixed views received to the consultation exercise had been included in the letter.

The previous intension to work towards the revised code of conduct being in place by the beginning of April, 2007 had been included in the letter. However, it was now being suggested that the timetable would be reviewed in light of competing legislative priorities within the Welsh Assembly Government. One of the options under consideration had been to delay the code's introduction to coincide with the local elections in May, 2008.

Members expressed their concern regarding the proposed delay and the possibility of facing the added pressure of providing two sets of training in a short period of time prior to and following the elections.

A copy of a letter from Mr Terry Coxon, Chair of the Monitoring Officers Group, to Mr John Palmer, Head of Local Government Policy Division, was circulated to Members at the meeting.

The disappointment of the conference that the Local Government Policy Division had been unable to provide a substitute for Mr Phipps to address the conference and respond to the feelings of the delegates had been included in the letter, together with, the conference's profound disappointment with the announcement that the revised Code of Conduct was unlikely to be introduced before May, 2008.

Members of the Standards Committee fully endorsed the views expressed in Mr Coxon's letter and agreed that the Monitoring Officer write to the Local Government Policy Division

expressing the concerns of the Standards Committee in respect of the proposed delay of the introduction of the revised Code of Conduct.

The Monitoring Officer outlined the difficulties being encountered in respect of the provision of training for Town and Community Councillors as a result of the delay in the introduction of the revised Code of Conduct.

#### RESOLVED that:-

- (a) the report be received and the contents noted;
- (b) the Standards Committee fully endorsed the views expressed in Mr Coxon's letter, and
- (c) the Monitoring Officer write to the Local Government Policy Division expressing the concerns of the Standards Committee in respect of the proposed delay of the introduction of the revised Code of Conduct.

## (c) All Wales Standards Committee Conference 2006

The Monitoring Officer referred to the All Wales Standards Committee Conference, held on the 22<sup>nd</sup> September, 2006, and suggested that an informal discussion on the proceedings of the Conference be held by Members of the Standards Committee following the meeting.

**RESOLVED** that an informal discussion on the proceedings of All Wales Standards Conference, held on the 22<sup>nd</sup> September, 2006, be held by Members of the Standards Committee following the meeting of the Standards Committee.

# 535 ANNUAL REPORTS 2005/06 OF THE COMMISSIONER FOR LOCAL ADMINISTRATION IN WALES AND THE ADJUDICATION PANEL FOR WALES

#### (a) Annual Report of the Commissioner for Local Government Administration in Wales

A copy of a report by the Monitoring Officer, noting the receipt of the Ombudsman's Annual Report for the year 2005/2006, had been circulated with the papers for the meeting.

The Monitoring Officer introduced the report and explained that although the major interest for Members would be section 4 of the Annual Report, which related to the Ombudsman's function as Commissioner for Local Administration in Wales, it would be noted from the introduction on pages 5-7 that an omnibus volume had been created drawing together this function together with those of the Welsh Administration Ombudsman, the Health Services Commissioner for Wales and the Social Housing Ombudsman for Wales. Members were informed that all functions had finally merged under the one hat of Public Services Ombudsman on 1<sup>st</sup> April 2006.

It was explained that, as previously, the focus for Local Government would be in respect of his two jurisdictions relating to complaints of maladministration which appeared on pages 12-16 and in respect of allegations of breach of the Code of Conduct on pages 29-40. Members were informed that a full copy of the report could be viewed at the Public Services Ombudsman website

The Monitoring Officer informed Members that the Ombudsman had reported that there had been an increase in the number of new allegations received. It was explained that it had been a continuing concern that many of the allegations had been ill founded and consequently, in respect of a high proportion of the allegations, the Ombudsman had decided not to investigate. Members were informed that in Denbighshire the Ombudsman had not referred any cases to the Monitoring Officer for investigation or reporting to the Standards Committee.

The external and independent investigation of complaints against the Council by the Ombudsman supported the Council in achieving its objectives of ensuring legal and

procedural propriety. Accordingly the report would be presented to both the Standards Committee and the Corporate Governance Committee.

In response to concerns raised by Councillor Dobb with regard to the circulation of information relating to the number of complaints reported to the Ombudsman, the Monitoring Officer explained that complaints relating to maladministration were referred to the Corporate Governance Committee for investigation and complaints relating to misconduct could be referred by the Ombudsman to the respective Standards Committee for investigation.

RESOLVED -that the Ombudsman's Annual Report be received and noted.

#### (b) Annual Report of the Adjudication Panel for Wales

A copy of a report by the Monitoring Officer, noting the receipt of the Adjudication Panel for Wales for the year 2005/2006, had been circulated with the papers for the meeting.

The Monitoring Officer introduced the report and explained that he would focus on issues and matters relating to misconduct rather than those relating to maladministration.

He referred to the way in which the legislative background had been set out at section 1 of the report and the overview of procedures at section 4. Section 3 of the report detailed those allegations dealt with by case tribunals and those cases that were appeals from local Standards Committees. He explained that it had been significant that in the two appeals heard the appeal tribunals had upheld the determination that there had been breaching of the Code of Conduct.

Members were informed that the Adjudication Panel for Wales provided a mechanism both for dealing with the most serious allegations and for appeals against the findings of local Standards Committees and thus contributed to the overall role of ensuring the highest standards of conduct in local government.

Mr G.F. Roberts referred to page 6 of the Annual Report of the Adjudication Panel for Wales and explained that he was pleased to note that suspensions or partial suspensions for a period of up to six months could be enforced.

RESOLVED -that the Adjudication Panel's Annual Report be received and noted.

## 536 FUTURE MEETING OF THE STANDARDS COMMITTEE

The Monitoring Officer explained that there were currently no items of business for consideration at the next meeting of the Standards Committee schedule for the 24<sup>th</sup> November, 2006. Members agreed that subject to any items arising prior to the 24<sup>th</sup> November, 2006, the next meeting of the Standards Committee be held, as previously agreed, on Friday, 12<sup>th</sup> January, 2007.

#### **RESOLVED** that:-

- (a) the meeting of the Standards Committee scheduled for the 24<sup>th</sup> November, 2006 be cancelled, and
- (b) the next meeting of the Standards Committee be held on Friday, 12<sup>th</sup> January, 2007.

Meeting ended at 11.10 a.m.

\*\*\*\*\*